Master Agreement Between Okemos **Board of Education Association Of** Okemos **Administrators**

2024-2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
Article I	Recognition	
Article II	Purpose	
Article III	Rights of the Board	
Article IV	Association Rights	
Article V	Administrator's Rights	
Article VI	Hours and Days of Work	
Article VII	Complaints	
Article VIII	Grievance Procedure	
Article IX	Individual Contracts/Length/Extension/Non-renewal	6
Article X	Creation of Administrative Positions	
Article XI	Protection of Administrators	6
Article XII	Leaves	7
Article XIII	Association Membership	
Article XIV	Conference	
Article XV	Retirement Benefits	
Article XVI	Curriculum Functions	
Article XVII	Health Benefits	11
Article XVIII	Longevity	12
Article XIX	Professional Development	
Article XX	Responsibility Stipend	
Article XXI	Mileage and Cell Phone	
Article XXII	Salary Structure	13
Article XXIII	Validity of Agreement	
Article XXIV	School Calendar	14
Article XXV	Duration of Agreement	14
Appendix A	Salary Schedules	15
	Agreement	
	Index	17

ARTICLE I – RECOGNITION

Section 1

The Board hereby recognizes the Association of Okemos Administrators (AOA) as exclusive bargaining representative pursuant to Act 37O of Public Acts of 1965 as amended for all elementary principals, middle school principals, senior high school principal, all assistant principals, the director of community education, the director of special education, and the athletic director. Excluded from recognition specifically are the superintendent, assistant superintendents, and all other school personnel.

The Board or Representative of the Board will not approve or agree to any request from individual members of AOA for deviation from this agreement, unless the Association and representative of the Board enter into a mutually developed written agreement.

Section 2

The term "Administrator" when used herein, shall refer to all members of the bargaining unit represented by the Association. If the Board of Education shall create a new administrative position, the Association shall have the right to meet and confer with the Board regarding the inclusion of the position within the bargaining unit. If the parties so agree, the position will be added by written agreement. If the parties do not agree, the dispute may be settled in accordance with the law.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

The general purpose of this agreement is to promote orderly and harmonious relations between the Board and Administrators and to document the benefits available to Administrators in the Okemos Public Schools.

Both parties recognize that the basic purpose of the Okemos Public Schools is for the education of its youth and that all employees are obligated to help provide the best educational system possible. The Board and AOA cooperatively encourage friendly relations between the respective representatives at all levels, among all employees and all citizens.

ARTICLE III - RIGHTS OF THE BOARD

Section 1

The Board has responsibility and authority for the direction and management, on behalf of the public and the State of Michigan, of all the operations and activities of the school district in accordance with the Constitution, statutes, Administrative Rules, Attorney General opinions and court decisions of the State of Michigan and the United States.

Section 2

The provisions of the Agreement shall be and hereby are in conformity with the above laws, rules and interpretations.

Section 3

By its own decision, the Board agrees to the terms of this contract, but in entering into this contract the Board does not and cannot divest itself of its policy making power to make the final decision in any situation which falls beyond the terms of this Agreement.

Section 4

In the exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices and furtherance therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of agreement.

Section 5

An emergency manager appointed by law may reject, modify or terminate this agreement as provided by law.

ARTICLE IV - ASSOCIATION RIGHTS

Section 1

Duly authorized representatives of the Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property provided that such business does not interfere with the instructional program of the school nor the duties of the Administrators.

Section 2

It is understood that the Association shall have rights to financial information of the district pursuant to the Public Employment Relations Act and/or the Freedom of Information Act and shall pay any cost consistent with the FOIA.

ARTICLE V - ADMINISTRATOR'S RIGHTS

Section 1

Each Administrator shall have the right to review the contents of their personnel file. The Administrator shall have the right to choose an individual to accompany them for such review. No more than one (1) official file shall be kept on each Administrator, and the contents herein shall remain in the building housing the Superintendent.

No materials concerning a complaint about an Administrator may be placed in the personnel file by anyone other than the Superintendent without first notifying the Administrator of their opportunity to file a response thereto and when filed not later than ten (10) working days after notification, the response shall become part of the file. In the event that a proper request for a copy of information contained in the file is received, the Administrator shall be notified before copies are released.

Section 2

Administrators shall be entitled to Association representation upon request at all interviews or conferences when disciplinary action concerning that Administrator will be discussed or where discipline will be imposed.

Section 3

Building principals shall supervise the operation and management of school buildings and property as the Board shall determine. Administrators shall be assigned administrative responsibilities and coordinate instructional leadership under the supervision of the Superintendent or designee for the planning, management, operation and evaluation of the educational program and services provided in their building. Further, the Administrator shall submit recommendations to the Superintendent or designee for the appointment, assignment, promotion, or dismissal of personnel assigned to the Administrator's supervision. As a part of appointment or assignment of staff to a building, the building Administrator shall have the opportunity to interview the staff to be assigned to their building prior to the assignment except where the assignment is mandated by other contractual relationships.

Section 4

It is recognized that the administration of the school district must be a unified endeavor directed towards the efficient operation of the delivery of education to the youth of the community. As such, the mutual support of the administration and the Board are pledged in order to carry out the policies of the district.

ARTICLE VI - HOURS AND DAYS OF WORK

Section 1

It is recognized that Administrators have the same professional hours as other Okemos professional personnel. By professional hours, we mean that Administrators must be on the job whenever it is necessary for them to fulfill their role as the leader/supervisor of the educational program and activities within their building. The goal of professional hours is to make sure the quality educational supervision takes place. This can be done only if there is the dedication of the professional Administrator. It is expected of professional Administrators that they will be in their buildings during heavy and crucial school related activity hours, including before and after school and evening hours, it being understood that principal representation at evening meetings and/or functions is mandatory. Since the crucial and heavy activity hours vary according to building and level, Administrators will work with the Superintendent in identifying those hours. Also, with the permission of the Superintendent, the principal may appoint an assistant or designee to cover some of the crucial and heavy activity hours. The use of a designee or assistant will be on file in the Superintendent's office in case of emergencies.

Section 2

The Superintendent or designee will establish the schedule of days worked with each Administrator according to the days worked category negotiated by the Association and found in the salary schedule. Unpaid days of absence will not be accumulated from year to year. Any deviation from the established schedule will require prior written approval of the Superintendent or designee.

Section 3

Due to the complex nature of the administrative position, certain situations may arise during the work year that require an Administrator to work one or more days in addition to the regular contract to aid the district and/or to fulfill the role of the job. Advance approval from the superintendent is required and if approved, a compensatory day will be granted for each additional day worked. On the other hand, it may be necessary to extend the number of days, at the beginning or ending, of the contract year. Advance approval from the Superintendent is required and, if approved, the daily rate for the individual will be paid for each additional day worked.

Section 4

Administrators who need to work over the summer beyond their contractual days to complete work outside of the normal scope in preparation for the following school year, will be compensated at a rate of \$70 per hour or one (1) hour of compensatory time for each hour worked with prior written approval from the Superintendent or designee. Administrators will turn in a COS form and timesheet once completed. If the administrator chooses compensatory time and cannot use it by June 10th of the school year, they will be paid out at the hourly rate on the final pay of the fiscal year.

ARTICLE VII - COMPLAINTS

Section 1

It is understood that during the course of employment as an Administrator, inevitable decisions will be made that may adversely affect certain individuals, thereby causing that person to seek redress elsewhere. It is also recognized that complaints concerning problems or indeed solutions to problems can best be handled first by the affected parties, unless very unusual circumstances dictate other procedures. Accordingly, in most cases, a complaint about a principal or their administration of the building, program or personnel under their jurisdiction, will be referred to the principal for disposition initially. If the Superintendent or designee receive complaints on appeal from the building level, the Superintendent or designee, upon determining the validity of the complaint, will inform the principal involved of any recommended disposition of the complaint. The principal shall have an opportunity to provide background information prior to any action on the complaint which changes the Administrator's initial decision.

Section 2

Likewise, it is acknowledged by the Association and its members that the proper channels of communication to the Board of Education will be observed so that the flow of information and resolution of problems can best serve the needs of the district. It is understood that administrative problems are best handled by the administration in

accordance with Board policy. Resolution of the day-to-day decisions in running the district must first be resolved at the administrative level. Guidance from the Board on administrative decisions is sought through the Superintendent's office and not directly.

ARTICLE VIII - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1

- A. A "grievance" is an alleged violation of the express terms of this agreement by an Administrator.
- B. The term "day" as used herein shall mean Monday through Friday except when a holiday shall fall on one of those days.
- C. When submitting a written grievance, the grievant will provide the following information on the grievance:
 - 1. It shall be signed by the grievant.
 - 2. It shall contain the date of the alleged violation.
 - 3. It shall be specific.
 - 4. It shall contain a summary of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation.
 - 5. It shall cite section(s) or subsection(s) of this agreement which are alleged to have been violated.
 - 6. It shall specify the relief requested.

Any grievance not in accordance with the above shall be rejected as improper and shall not extend the time limits contained herein.

- D. Any matter involving the content of evaluations shall not be grievable nor shall non-renewal or non-extension of an Administrator's contract.
- E. Any grievance considered under this procedure must be initiated within ten (10) days of its alleged occurrence.

Section 2 - Step 1

An Administrator may initiate a grievance by first discussing the matter with the Superintendent or designee. The grievance must be initiated within ten (10) days of the date of the occurrence of the facts upon which the grievance is based.

If the matter cannot be resolved orally, it shall be reduced to writing and submitted to the Superintendent within five (5) days of the oral discussion. The Superintendent shall respond in writing within five (5) days of receipt of the written grievance.

Section 3 - Step 2

If the response of the Superintendent is not satisfactory, the Administrator may appeal to the Board of Education within five (5) days of the date of the Superintendent's response. The appeal shall be to the Secretary of the Board of Education who shall transmit the appeal to the Board of Education at its next regularly scheduled meeting. At that meeting, the Board shall appoint a committee of the Board to hear the grievance within twenty (20) days and

report its recommendations back to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting for final disposition by the Board of Education. The Board shall render its final decision no later than twenty (20) days from the date of the hearing before the committee. The Board's decision shall be final and binding on all parties.

Section 4

The time limits stated herein shall not be extended except by written agreement.

ARTICLE IX - INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTS/LENGTH/EXTENSION/NON-RENEWAL

Section 1

All Administrators shall be employed under annual written contracts, the terms of which shall be subject to and consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Said contracts shall be effective on July 1st and shall terminate on June 30th. Neither individual contracts nor this collective bargaining agreement shall confer tenure to any Administrator in any administrative position.

Section 2

All newly hired Administrators that are hired after the school year has begun, shall be initially employed for the remainder of that school year and the next school year.

Section 3

Prior to June 1 of each year, the Board shall consider the extension of each Administrator's contract. Failure of the Board of Education to take affirmative action will result in a one-year extension of each Administrator's contract. If the Board denies the extension of any Administrator's contract, it shall adopt a resolution informing the Administrator of its decision not to extend the termination date of the contract.

Section 4

Prior to March 31 of each year, the Board of Education shall consider non-renewal of an Administrator's contract. Non-renewal is distinguished from non-extension in that non-renewal is in essence a termination notice to be effective as of the termination date of the individual contract in that school year.

Per Section 1229 of the School Code, notification of non-renewal of a contract will be given in writing at least sixty days before contract termination. This notice shall include a written statement of reasons for such action. These reasons shall not be arbitrary or capricious.

The Board shall not issue a notice of non-renewal unless this affected person has been provided with not less than thirty days advance notice that the Board is considering non-renewal of the contract. This notice shall include a written statement of the reasons for such action. After the issuance of the written statement and before the non-renewal statement is issued, the affected person shall be given the opportunity to meet with not less than a majority of the Board to discuss the reasons stated in the written statement.

ARTICLE X - CREATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE POSITIONS

It is agreed that the Association will be given the opportunity to make recommendations to the Superintendent prior to the Board taking action to approve new administrative positions.

ARTICLE XI - PROTECTION OF ADMINISTRATORS

Section 1

The Board shall recognize its responsibility to provide all reasonable support and assistance to Administrators with respect to maintenance of control and discipline in the schools.

Section 2

Administrators shall report to the Superintendent's office all cases involving serious abusive conduct or assaults suffered by them in connection with their employment.

Section 3

The Board pledges its support of its Administrators in the lawful performance of their duties. In accordance with this concept, the Board will continue to provide coverage for each Administrator under a \$3,000,000 comprehensive liability insurance policy. In the event the insurance company shall not provide legal counsel, if the Administrator is sued, the Board shall provide its legal counsel on behalf of the Administrator, if the Board shall determine the Administrator has acted within the scope of the Administrator's job responsibilities and authority, and in accordance with Board Policy.

ARTICLE XII - LEAVES

Section 1 - Personal

The Board may grant a personal leave of absence. An Administrator may request a personal leave of absence for a one (1) year period. To be considered for this leave, an Administrator must be employed in the Okemos School District for a minimum of three (3) years and must apply in writing stating the purpose of the leave to the Superintendent or designee prior to March 15 of the preceding year. This does not guarantee any particular number of leaves.

In computing service to determine the Administrator's position on the salary guide at expiration of leave, time spent on leave shall not be counted as active service in the Okemos School District.

Administrators on personal leave of absence shall make written application for reinstatement no later than March 15 of the school year of their leave. Providing the leave does not exceed one school year, an Administrator on leave who makes application for reinstatement as aforementioned, shall be reinstated at the beginning of the next year to the Administrator's former position, if available, and if not, to a comparable position or to a position that is mutually agreed upon for which the individual is qualified.

Section 2 - Hardship

The Board may grant a leave of absence for not more than one (1) year without compensation to any Administrator who is unable to perform their regular duties for an extended period of time because of personal illness or hardship, provided a written request for such a leave of absence is submitted by the Administrator and, in the case of illness, provided written certification is received from a physician. Such leaves are renewable at the discretion of the Board.

In computing service to determine the Administrator's position on the salary guide at expiration of leave, time spent on leave shall not be counted as active service in the Okemos School District.

Whenever a leave of absence is granted for health reasons, Administrators must give acceptable professional evidence of recovered health before being permitted to return to duties in the Okemos School District.

Administrators on leave shall make written application ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of the leave, or at a mutually agreed upon time, for possible reinstatement.

Section 3 - Military Leave

Military leave, including service in the National Guard and Reserves, shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.

Section 4 - Parental Leave

Administrators may be granted unpaid leave for the purpose of childbirth and/or childcare of a newborn child for a period of one (1) year. This leave may be renewed on a yearly basis at the discretion of the Board.

Application for childcare leave shall be made as early as possible but shall be received by the Superintendent no later than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of such leave.

An Administrator wishing to return from childcare leave shall file a written request with the Superintendent as soon as possible, but no less than sixty (60) days prior to the anticipated date of return.

Should death of the child occur during a childcare leave, the Administrator shall be returned to duty as soon as possible after filing a written notice of intent to return.

Section 5 - Jury Duty

An Administrator called to jury duty shall be compensated the difference between jury duty pay and their regular salary. Absence while on jury duty will not be deducted from Administrator's accumulated leave days.

Section 6 - Sick Leave

Each Administrator shall be entitled to ninety (90) workdays off with full pay in each period from July 1 to June 30 for personal or immediate family illness or injury. Immediate family shall be defined as spouse, parents, inlaws, children, brother, sister, grandparents, grandchildren, and any other person whose physical care the Administrator is principally responsible for. Additional days may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent. Sick leave shall be non-accumulative. The district assures the Administrator will have enough sick days available to reach the activation of disability benefits.

In the event an Administrator who has previously taught in the Okemos Public Schools returns to the classroom as a teacher, they shall have all previously accumulated teaching sick leave restored to their account plus the net amount of sick leave earned while an administrative capacity based upon the formula of ten (10) sick days per year less sick days used. For those who had not previously taught in Okemos Public Schools, upon assuming a teaching position, they may transfer sick leave based upon the above formula only.

Section 7 - Death in the Family

Each Administrator shall be granted up to five (5) days leave for bereavement of immediate family. Additional days may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent. Immediate family shall be interpreted as: mother, father, husband, wife, child, stepchild, adopted child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents and any other persons which the Administrator is principally responsible for physical care.

Section 8 - Business Leave

All administrative employees are eligible to receive three (3) business leave days per year. An Administrator desiring such a leave must obtain approval to be absent in advance from their supervisor. The second business day may be used for business transactions only and may not be used on a workday immediately proceeding or following a holiday, vacation period or during parent/teacher conferences.

Section 9 - Sabbatical Leave

Administrators who have been employed in the Okemos Public Schools for seven (7) consecutive years may be granted a sabbatical leave upon request. Application should be made with the Superintendent in February for a leave beginning the following school year. There may be up to two (2) Administrators eligible for sabbatical leave each year. This does not guarantee any particular number of sabbatical leaves.

Requests for sabbatical leave will be considered only for a full semester or a full year and shall not exceed two (2) semesters. During said sabbatical leave, Administrators must be in the employ of the Okemos Public Schools and will be paid one-half (1/2) of their salary and full fringe benefits.

Administrators must return to service with the Okemos Public Schools immediately upon termination of the sabbatical leave and shall continue service with the Okemos Public Schools for a period of one (1) year, or subject to such conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by the individual and the Board at the time of leave approval. If Administrators do not return to the service of the Okemos Public Schools after termination of their sabbatical leave, they must refund in full all compensation received from the Okemos Public Schools while on leave unless they receive a written waiver to the contrary from the Board. An Administrator returning from sabbatical leave must submit a written statement within forty-five (45) calendar days after the conclusion of the leave to the Board of Education indicating the accomplishments achieved during the leave and showing how these accomplishments related to the betterment of the school district.

Providing the leave does not exceed one school year, an Administrator, upon return from sabbatical leave, will be restored to the former position, if available, and if not, to a comparable position or to a position that is mutually agreed upon for which the individual is qualified.

In computing service to determine the Administrator's salary at the expiration of leave, time spent on leave will be counted as active service in the Okemos School District.

Section 10 - Educational Leave

Administrators who have been employed in the Okemos Public Schools for three (3) years or more may be granted an educational leave upon written request. Terms of the leave, if granted, must be mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent, Board of Education and the Administrator. The Administrator must agree to return to the Okemos Public Schools for not less than one (1) year immediately following the leave.

If Administrators do not return to the service of the Okemos Public Schools after termination of their educational leave, they must refund in full all compensation received from the Okemos Public Schools while on leave unless they receive a written waiver to the contrary from the Board.

Upon returning to full-time service at the termination of the leave, an Administrator will advance on the salary scale as if on active service, provided the conditions of the leave have been fulfilled.

An Administrator wishing to pursue advance study in the field of educational administration and related fields may request an education leave of absence.

ARTICLE XIII - ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP

Each Administrator is encouraged to join state, local, national and international professional associations directly related to that Administrator's primary professional duties. The cost to be paid by the Board, with prior written approval, for one membership per Administrator with no maximum.

The Superintendent may approve membership in an additional organization because of the uniqueness of the particular administrative assignment.

ARTICLE XIV – CONFERENCE

The Board encourages the continuing professional growth of the Administrators and shall fully reimburse expenditures for reasonable local and state conference expenses. Registration, travel, food and lodging are reimbursable. Specific approval by the Superintendent or designee for attendance must be obtained. Attendance approval shall be based on the educational nature of the conference in relationship to the development of new programs, curricula, and administrative skills.

If funds are available through the budget process, funds will be allocated for national conference attendance. The Superintendent or designee and Administrators shall meet to determine the distribution of funds.

ARTICLE XV - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Section 1

The Board agrees to pay one hundred dollars (\$100.00) per year of service to the Okemos School District to an Administrator upon retirement* provided said Administrator has been employed by the school district for ten (10) years to twenty (20) years. Administrators employed by the Okemos School District for twenty-one (21) years or more shall be paid one hundred fifty dollars (\$150.00) per year of service to Okemos School District.

* Retirement shall be interpreted to mean leaving the service of the Okemos School District and becoming an annuitant of either the Michigan Public School Employee Retirement Fund, Social Security, or both.

Section 2

In addition to the provisions set forth in Section 1 above, those bargaining unit members who retire with at least ten (10) years of administrative service to Okemos Public Schools and who provide written notice of intent to retire no later than the last school day prior to spring break, shall be entitled to one half (1/2) of the Administrator's daily rate for unused sick leave up to a maximum of seventy (70) days.

In the case of extenuating circumstances, as determined by the Superintendent, the deadline can be waived. (Examples of extenuating circumstances that become known after the established date include but are not limited to: health issues for self or dependent; employment opportunity for spouse outside reasonable commuting distance etc.)

The following formula will be used for calculating "daily rate": salary + longevity divided by the number of "days worked" (as stated on administrative salary schedule).

Section 3

The Board agrees to implement a 457 deferred compensation plan; and offer the option of a Roth 403b.

ARTICLE XVI - CURRICULUM FUNCTIONS

Section 1

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of building level Administrator involvement and leadership in curriculum study and decision-making. Each Administrator is expected to assume major responsibility for curriculum and study revisions, or additional supervisory assignments as assigned and approved by the superintendent or designee in consultation with the principal involved. Should two or more Administrators share this responsibility, the pay will be divided equally. All potential chair positions of district committees requiring an administrative leader will be communicated to all bargaining unit members.

An Administrator assigned to chair a district committee responsible for curriculum study and/or revision will receive a payment of:

$2025^{-}2027$ $\psi^{2},175$

It is expected that the assistant principal or their successor (see Article I, Section 1) will assume the duties of the Athletic Director for the middle school as a part of their "additional supervisory assignment".

Section 2

The Association of Okemos Administrators shall have the right to review recommendations of study committees or other appropriate Okemos School District decision-making groups, prior to presentation to the Okemos Board of Education. Upon the review of the recommendations, the AOA shall have the right to supply written recommendations to the Superintendent of Schools concerning the recommendations of the Study Committee or other appropriate school district decision-making groups. Any written recommendations by the AOA will be included and made a part of any informal package given to the Board of Education regarding the committee's recommendations.

ARTICLE XVII -HEALTH BENEFITS

Section 1 - Long Term Disability

All Administrators will receive Long Term Disability Insurance. If an Administrator becomes disabled and cannot perform their duties, the Administrator will receive 66-2/3 percentage coverage after ninety (90) days with a modified fill, until they are able to return to work. The duration of this benefit shall be determined by the policy. This benefit shall be provided at no cost to the Administrator.

Section 2 - Hospitalization Insurance

Medical-hospitalization insurance coverage for each administrator and their dependents will be provided by the Board. The responsibility for selecting the carrier will rest with the Board. Effective with the 2011-12 school year, the Board will pay 80% and the employee will pay 20% of the health premium.

The Board will provide a WMHIP BCBS healthcare plan. The cost beyond the Employer's contribution shall be payroll deducted. The Employee payment of the premium will be payroll deducted from (2) two pay periods per month. Insurance premiums will not be deducted from the 3rd pay in the month.

Section 3 - Cash Benefit Option

In lieu of aforementioned hospitalization insurance, Administrators may substitute a \$250 monthly cash benefit. Members who elect the cash in lieu benefit will be paid in 18 equal installments beginning in October and ending in June.

Section 4 - Dental Insurance

The cost of dental insurance coverage for each Administrator (and dependents) will be paid by the Board. The responsibility for selecting the carrier will rest with the Board. An additional \$1,500 for children's orthodontics, for bargaining unit members receiving cash in lieu of health, will be provided.

Section 5 - Life Insurance

Each Administrator will receive term life insurance equal to twice the Administrator's salary. The responsibility for selecting the carrier will rest with the Board.

Section 6 - Vision Care

The cost of vision insurance coverage for each Administrator (and dependents) will be paid by the Board. The responsibility for selecting the carrier will rest with the Board.

Section 7 - Termination of Insurance

All insurance benefits shall end thirty (30) days after the effective date of termination of employment with Okemos Schools.

Upon retirement/resignation at the end of a school year, employee's healthcare benefits will cease on June 30.

Section 8

An Administrator shall not be eligible for insurance benefits until the individual is enrolled by the insurance company. The terms of the insurance policies and insurance contracts shall be controlling in determining the insurance benefits to which Administrators are entitled pursuant to the Article. The district's obligations will be fully satisfied by the payment of insurance premiums. The district shall have no liability in the event of a dispute regarding the coverage to which an Administrator or their family members are entitled under an insurance policy.

ARTICLE XVIII – LONGEVITY

Administrators shall receive a longevity payment for years of administrative service in the Okemos Public Schools in addition to the salary schedule.

Longevity	2023-2024
Beginning with the 8th year of service	\$1,763
Beginning with the 10th year of service	\$3,525

ARTICLE XIX - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Section 1 - Educational Pay

Each Administrator that has earned a doctorate shall receive a payment of \$1,400 per year.

Section 2 - Tuition

Full reimbursement of tuition for one course per year will be granted only when the course has a direct professional relationship to the Administrator's job, is satisfactorily completed and is approved by the Superintendent.

Section 3 - Mentorship

Whenever a new building principal is hired, one of the present principals may be assigned as a mentor to the new principal for one academic year.

The person to be assigned to act as a mentor for a particular individual would be mutually agreed upon by the Superintendent and the parties involved.

The mentor shall receive a \$500 stipend for mentoring an experienced principal and shall receive \$1,000 for mentoring a first-year new principal.

The purpose of a mentorship is to help administrative colleagues who are new to the position to be successful in their work. Among the mentor's goals would be to orient the "mentee" to the district, to act as a support person for the "mentee", to answer questions, and to give suggestions as needed.

Upon agreement of the parties the responsibilities of the mentor may include:

- 1. Making regular contacts with the "mentee".
- 2. Attending staff meetings at the "mentee's school".
- 3. Attending parent meetings at the "mentee's school".
- 4. Visiting the "mentee's" school while in operation.

It is understood that the mentor would not be part of any evaluation done by the "mentee's" supervisor.

ARTICLE XX – RESPONSIBILITY PAY

It is recognized that the professional responsibilities of administrators frequently require evening and weekend commitments. Therefore, it is agreed that should administrators need additional "release" time during their scheduled work year, they may request up to two (2) comp. days per year. The request must be in writing to the Superintendent or designee, and the dates must be mutually agreed upon. Furthermore, it is understood that the comp. days cannot be accumulated or "rolled over" into the next school year.

Administrators can "roll over" one (1) unused comp. day to a maximum of three (3) comp days in any given year.

The parties agree that the comp. days in no way reflect the amount of extra time required by administration within their positions. However, it is an attempt to acknowledge their commitment and dedication to the students and families of Okemos Public Schools.

In recognition of the extra responsibilities required of each administrator throughout the school year, the Board of Education and AOA agreed to specific amounts of additional compensation depending on the administrative position. This compensation recognizes the administrator's extensive time commitment, access and availability beyond the workday. Such time commitment includes but is not limited to attending meetings, performances, events, as well as representing the district as appropriate within the community, county and state. Beginning with the 2017-2018 school year, it will no longer be a separate payment but instead added to the salary schedule.

Administrator	2016-2017*
Assistant Principals Principals	\$2,568
Director of Community Education High School Athletic Director	\$3,218
Director of Special Education	\$4,453

*These were the responsibility amounts paid in 2016-2017

ARTICLE XXI – MILEAGE AND CELL PHONE

The district will not reimburse administrators for mileage for travel within Ingham County. Nor will the district reimburse the administrator for a cell phone/data plan. It is at the discretion of the Administrator to claim such items as business expenses when filing annual income tax forms.

For Administrators whose responsibilities involve meetings outside of the county, upon presentation of vouchers, mileage will be reimbursed at the current IRS rate.

The district will pay for the replacement of the administrator's cell phone, up to a maximum of \$600, if it becomes outdated or is no longer functioning under normal use. The phone will be replaced no more than once every two years. The cost of the phone must be pre-approved by the Superintendent or designee.

ARTICLE XXII - SALARY STRUCTURE

Section 1

The salary program for Okemos Administrators is based on a plan whereby:

- A. All administrative positions are ranked in terms of relative responsibilities.
- B. Elementary responsibility factor is based on the K-4 enrollment, including any special education programs in the building, as follows: 200+ students = 1.12; 300+ students = 1.13; 400+ students = 1.14. The State's official fall count date will be used to determine the factor.
- C. Salaries are externally competitive with districts having comparable per pupil expenditures and community education expectations.

Section 2

AOA bargaining unit members consent to have their pay spread over 21 or 26 pay periods in biweekly installments. If a member's employment is terminated by either party or is on an unpaid leave of absence, and they have not worked their contractual number of days, the bargaining unit member's compensation shall be prorated using the total salary enumerated in the contract divided by the number of days *w*orked. Any adjustments shall be made in the final paycheck. The employee shall be responsible for adjustments owed to the district.

ARTICLE XXIII - VALIDITY OF AGREEMENT

Section 1

The parties mutually agree that the terms and conditions set forth in this agreement represent the full and complete understanding and commitment between the parties hereto which may be altered, changed, added to, deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary mutual consent of the parties in an amendment hereto.

Section 2

Should any article, section or clause of this Agreement be declared invalid by the court or competent jurisdiction, said article, section or clause as the case may be automatically deleted from this Agreement but the remaining articles, section and/or clauses shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the Agreement.

Section 3

This Agreement shall supersede any rules or regulations or practices of the Board which shall be contrary to or inconsistent with its terms. It shall likewise supersede any contrary inconsistent terms contained in any individual bargaining unit member contracts heretofore in effect. All future individual bargaining unit member contracts shall be made expressly subject to the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXIV -SCHOOL CALENDAR

Section 1

The Administrator's work schedule shall be adjusted as necessary to conform with student instruction days and changes in the school calendar.

ARTICLE XXV - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 1

This Agreement shall be in effect as of July 1, 2022. The language shall remain in full force and effect until midnight June 30, 2025. Salary and insurance benefits will be re-negotiated for the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 school years.

Section 2

At least ninety (90) days prior to the termination of this Agreement, either party may give the other party notice, by registered mail, of its desires to terminate, modify or amend this Agreement. Upon receipt of this notice, the parties will promptly make arrangements to commence negotiating a successor agreement.

APPENDIX A

Administrative Salary Schedule – 2024-2025

Position	Days Worked	-1-	-2-	-3-	-4-	-5-
H.S. Principal	210	\$123,556	\$126,007	\$128,506	\$131,059	\$135,312
Kinawa/CMS Principal	207	\$114,625	\$116,903	\$119,229	\$121,604	\$125,951
Elementary Principal						
A (500+)	207	\$113,779	\$116,010	\$118,285	\$120,633	\$124,925
B (450+)	207	\$113,241	\$115,470	\$117,746	\$120,070	\$124,381
C (400+)	207	\$112,810	\$115,051	\$117,336	\$119,673	\$124,000
D (300+)	207	\$111,846	\$114,066	\$116,332	\$118,647	\$122,951
E (200+)	207	\$110,882	\$113,085	\$115,332	\$117,622	\$121,900
H.S. Asst. Principal	210	\$109,448	\$111,621	\$113,838	\$116,099	\$120,326
CMS Asst. Principal/A.D.	207	\$105,216	\$107,301	\$109,428	\$111,598	\$115,755
Kinawa Asst. Principal	207	\$103,016	\$105,087	\$107,158	\$109,229	\$112,620
Director of Special Ed.	207	\$109,951	\$112,091	\$114,275	\$116,506	\$120,667
Athletic Director	207	\$99,953	\$101,916	\$103,924	\$105,970	\$109,902

These numbers include the following:

1% Increase

Step Advancement

Changes in # of Days

Increases Due to Changes in Days

Trigger Language

If the differential between the combined 2023-2024 per pupil foundation allowance (PPF) and the Fall 2023 per pupil count and the combined 2024-2025 per pupil foundation allowance and the Fall 2024 per pupil count is greater than \$500,000. Example: 2024: PPF x Fall count pupils 2023: PPF x Fall count pupils Total X -Y = \$500,000 or more = wage reopener

The Board maintains the first \$500,000 of these combined 2024-2025 funds.

AGREEMENT

This agreement entered into this 30th day of June, 2023 by and between the following parties:

For the Association

Witness

For the Okemos Board of Education

Witness

INDEX

Administrator's Rights	.3
Agreement	16
Association Membership	.9
Association Rights	.3
Bereavement Leave	.8
Business Leave	9
Cash In Lieu	.11
Complaints	.4
Conference	
Creation of Administrative Positions	.6
Curriculum Committee Chair Stipend	10
Curriculum Functions	10
Dental Insurance	.11
Duration of Agreement	.14
Educational Leave	9
Educational Stipend	.12
Grievance Procedure	
Hardship Leave	.7
Health Benefits/Insurance	.11
Hours and Days of Work	
Individual Contracts/Length/ Extension/Non-renewal	
Jury Duty	
Leaves	
Life Insurance	.11
Longevity	.12
Long Term Disability	
Mileage And Cell Phone	
Military Leave	
Mentorship	.12
Parental Leave	
Personal Leave	
Professional Development	
Protection of Administrators	
Purpose	
Recognition	
Responsibility Pay	.12
Retirement Benefits	
Rights of the Board	
Sabbatical Leave	
Salary Schedule	15
Salary Structure	13
School Calendar	
Sick Leave	
Summer Work	
Trigger Language	
Tuition	
Validity of Agreement	
Vision Insurance	
	-